
The addendum is issued to address questions submitted. 

 

1. Ownership and Legal Structure 

1. Will the sale transfer only physical assets (fiber, conduit, trailer, splicers), or also 
include all existing customer service agreements and lease rights? 

1. Yes, however there is only one active lease. It is with the Commerce City 
Schools and expires in 2027. See attached  

2. Does the transfer include conduit rights and pole-attachment licenses currently 
held by the City, or must the buyer obtain new agreements from Jackson EMC or 
other utilities? 

1. The transfer would not include pole attachment agreements. The purchaser 
would need to arrange payment to pole owners for any existing attachments. 
This would include the City of Commerce poles.  

2. Our over-head fiber is mostly located on City of Commerce Poles. 

1. The count for commerce attachments are: 391 pole attachments. 

2. We know of one (1) attachment on a JEMC pole. 

3. Is the City willing to execute a short-term transition MOU or service agreement to 
maintain current connectivity during closing and handover? 

1. No, we prefer a permanent agreement be executed at the time of closing. 
Bidders are encouraged to build MOU details into their transition plan. 

 

2. City Connectivity and Service Requirements 

4. Please confirm whether the 2 Gbps symmetrical service to the City and the 14 
facility interconnections will be paid services under a new SLA or provided in-kind. 

1. The City is open to either “in kind” proposals or a paid services agreement. 
An example would be a 2 gbps service and dark fiber agreements for City 
connectivity with a reduced pole attachment costs.  



5. If billable, does the City have an existing internal budget line for this connectivity, 
and can we propose a flat monthly rate in our offer? 

1. We do not have a budget that would be helpful in budgeting this future 
arrangement. Commerce would prefer a flat monthly/annual rate for ease of 
budget planning.  

6. Should bidders include service-level response times (e.g., 4-hour MTTR) in the 
proposal, or will the City define those post-award? 

1. Yes, a MTTR will be a factor in scoring for Section Four – Evaluations Criteria. 
Please submit details of MTTR service level in submittals.  

 

3. Existing Customers and Contracts 

7. Other than Commerce City Schools, are there any active paying customers on the 
network? 

1. Yes, at the time of this Addendum there are: 

1. One (1) 1gbps dedicated fiber customer 

2. Four (4)10 mbps dedicated customer 

3. Fourteen (14) 10 mbps non-dedicated customer 

4. One (1) 100 mbps dedicated customer 

5. One (1) 20 mbps dedicated customer 

6. Twelve (12) 20 mbps non-dedicated customers 

7. One (1) 30 mbps dedicated customer 

8. One (1) 300 mbps dedicated customer 

9. Three (3) 50 mbps dedicated customer 

10. Two (2) 50 mbps non-dedicated customer 

11. One (1) 75 mbps dedicated customer 

12. Four (4) Dark Fiber customers 

13. One (1) Billed Static IP Address 



8. Can the City disclose approximate monthly recurring revenue or service counts to 
help bidders model operational costs? 

1. Service counts are above. 

2. Current Financial Reports Attached 

9. Will the City provide copies of any remaining customer or dark-fiber agreements for 
due-diligence review? 

1. No, buyers should also understand that existing service agreements are 
expired and now treated as a monthly renewal.  

2. The active agreement with Commerce City Schools is attached.  

 

4. Network Infrastructure and Technical Details 

10. Are the GIS Shape Files referenced in the RFP the latest “as-built” versions, and are 
splice diagrams or OTDR reports available? 

1. The GIS data is not As-built level data and most is not field collected. The 
City of Commerce neither certifies nor claims that the GIS information 
shown represents the existing site conditions. The information shown shall 
not be used without field verification. 

2. OTDR reports are not available. Splice information will be released to buyer. 

11. Who currently owns or maintains the conduit infrastructure noted (≈ 30,075 ft) — 
the City, Georgia Power, or Jackson EMC? 

1. The City of Commerce Owns and maintains its conduit. There is one section 
of conduit not owned and maintained by Commerce and is not included in 
the published GIS data or the 30,075ft count.  

12. Will the buyer inherit any existing colocation or rack-space obligations at 27 
Sycamore St. (MDF)? 

1. Yes, leased MDF space at a cost of $800 a month.  

13. Is the MDF power cost and backup-generator maintenance the City’s or the buyer’s 
responsibility post-transfer? 



1. Power and facility backup systems are covered by the City of Commerce. 
The buyer will assume all responsibilities for rack-based backup systems. 

14. Please confirm the public IP addressing / ASN arrangement: does the City have 
routable address space or rely solely on Accelecom? 

1. We rely solely on Accelecom. 

 

5. Regulatory and Compliance 

15. Does the City currently hold a Georgia PSC telecommunications registration, or 
must the buyer file independently? 

1. Yes, we hold a CLEC certification and registration. 
 

16. Are any of the connected facilities (e.g., Police Department, Water Plants) subject 
to CJIS or SCADA/ICS compliance requirements that the new operator must meet? 

1. No.  
17.  

17.18. Will the City require proof of cyber-liability insurance in addition to general 
liability and workers’ compensation? 

1. Yes.  

 

6. Financial and Tax Considerations 

18. the buyer will be responsible for ad valorem (property) taxes on the asset. The 
City's tax-exempt status, which applies to public property used for a public or 
governmental purpose, will not transfer to a private entity. ? 

1. The buyer will be responsible for ad valorem (property) taxes on the asset. 
The City's tax-exempt status will not transfer to a private entity.  

19. May bidders propose a deferred or hybrid payment structure (services + cash over 
time) in lieu of a lump-sum payment? 

1. Yes 



20. If so, would the City consider an acquisition model where part of the purchase value 
is satisfied through in-kind network modernization and grant-funded 
improvements? 

1. No 

 

7. Grants and Modernization 

21. Is the City of Commerce currently certified as a Broadband Ready Community with 
the Georgia Technology Authority? 

1. No. 

22. Would the City be willing to act as the applicant or co-applicant for BEAD, GTA, or 
ARPA broadband grants with Kryptic Security serving as operational partner? 

1. No. 

23. May bidders include a grant-collaboration plan in their proposal, outlining how 
external funding will be pursued for network upgrades? 

1. No 

 

8. Operational Continuity and Transition 

24. Will Iron Grid Networks continue to support operations during the ownership 
transition, or will the City terminate that relationship upon award? 

1. Commerce will no longer fund Iron Grid’s services related to fiber network 
support following closing. The purchaser may choose to retain Iron Grid 
under a separate agreement. David Jones with Iron Grid Networks has 
agreed to discuss and outline limited ongoing support during and after the 
transition period. Any such services will be contracted with, billed to, and 
payable by the purchaser. 

25. What is the City’s expected timeline for asset transfer and operational hand-off 
after the award announcement? 

1. There is currently no established transition timeline. Bidders should provide 
their proposed hand-off timeline as outlined in Section Three of the RFP 
under Transition Plan. Additionally, Commerce requests that marketing 



materials related to the transition plan be prepared and ready for distribution 
to existing customers within 30 days of award.  

26. Does the City expect bidders to present to City Council before final selection? 

1. No 

 

9. Insurance and Risk Management 

27. Please confirm minimum coverage levels for: (a) General Liability, (b) Workers’ 
Compensation, and (c) Cyber Liability. 

1. Please see Section 1.13 in the RFP for insurance requirements. 

28. Does the City require the buyer to list the City as Additional Insured on all policies? 

1. Yes.  

 

10. Miscellaneous 

29. Can the City clarify whether the existing 2017 Lark United splice trailer and 
Sumitomo fusion splicers are included in the sale “as-is”? 

1. Yes, all included assets are “as is”.  

30. Are there any environmental or underground-damage liabilities (e.g., one-
call/DigSafe responsibilities) that transfer with the assets? 

1. No.  

 
 







 


